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2021 10 25
2023
47,340,335 88.33
2,170,591 4.05
1,966,790 3.67
51,477,715 96.05
2,117,454 3.95
53,595,170
100.00
(7,555 )
2023 31 UFJ
140.97
2023
)
VWodular Asian Macro Fund Ltd. 2,699.08| 3,136,570.50| 1,162.09| 3,163,080.00| 1,171.91| 5.90
Class B Shares Lead
Aristeia International Ltd.
risteia International Ltd 1,188.00| 2,515,772.81| 2,117.65| 2,636,884.80| 2,219.60| 4.92
Class A V Series Bench
Fenghe Asia (USTE) Fund Ltd.-
e Feh 2019 Serive 1,583.35| 2,555,141.00| 1,613.76| 2,573,533.00| 1,625.37| 4.80
Blue Diamond Non Directional
6,283.11| 2,018,181.92 321.21| 2,417,452.09|  384.75| 4.51
Fund SP - USD Jan 22
Boldhaven fund Class A UR USD 2,000.00| 2,000,000.00| 1,000.00{ 2,323,254.15| 1,161.63| 4.33
Series 11/21
HG Vora Special Opportunities
o e i A 2,500.00| 2,500,000.00| 1,000.00| 2,311,372.00|  924.55| 4.31
Serenitas Credit Gamma
posirabei N 1,620.96| 2,141,233.47| 1,320.97| 2,306,712.32| 1,423.05| 4.30
KL Special Opportunities Fund
i et ran 8,596.90| 2,000,000.00 232.64| 2,232,688.67 259.71| 4.17
Glazer Enhanced Offshore
Fund L1, USD Clase 0810 681.94| 2,064,416.31| 3,027.29| 2,137,420.55| 3,134.34| 3.99
Acasta Global Fund - Class D 13,945.24|  2,000,000.00 143.42| 2,122,107.70|  152.17| 3.96
Roubaix Offshore Fund Ltd.
oubaix Offshore Fund Ltd 2,000.00| 2,000,000.00| 1,000.00| 2,108,637.24| 1,054.32| 3.93
series 0222
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1p |Quantica llanaged Futures Fund 13,459.46| 1,973,638.84 146.64| 2,087,117.65|  155.07| 3.89
Inc.- Class Al USD
13 |Trium Larissa Global Wacro 7,130.54| 2,000,000.00 280.48| 2,083,697.75|  202.22| 3.89
Fund Limited - Class F
14 |Athas Enhanced Fund, Ltd. - 1,913.95| 1,913,945.44| 1,000.00| 2,075,439.63| 1,084.38| 3.87
Class 10-C-1 - Series
EDL Global Opportunities Fund
728. 1,723,754.1 . i . i
15 | i, Clacs ¢ neves 1,728.56| 1,723,754.13 997.22| 2,033,369.32| 1,176.34| 3.79
16 |Cooper Creek Partners Ltd. 2,000.00| 2,000,000.00{ 1,000.00| 1,974,885.03 987.44| 3.68
Class A
Alpine Heritage Offshore Fund
1,156.91| 2,016,234.25 . ) . )
17| , ,016, 1,742.78| 1,966,789.53| 1,700.04| 3.67
DLD Convertible Arbitrage
1,872. 2,022,593.84 . ) . )
18 | oo e Lt £ ,872.96| 2,022,503.84| 1,079.89| 1,930,617.43| 1,030.78| 3.60
Millstreet Credit Offshore
) ) . i . 12
19 | e s & 11731 1,500.00| 1,500,000.00| 1,000.00| 1,674,470.63| 1,116.31| 3
Bright Meadow Agency MBS
20 | eranore Fund Led 11721 150.00| 1,500,000.00| 10,000.00| 1,608,876.66| 10,725.84| 3.00
g1 |C30teng Emerging Markets Plus 1,500.00| 1,500,000.00| 1,000.00| 1,396,425.00]  930.95| 2.61
Class | Series 0223
gp |SCOPIa PX International 847.86| 1,042,602.00| 1,229.69| 1,126,986.17| 1,329.21| 2.10
Limited Class Al Series 1
23 |Scopia PX International 1,000.00| 1,000,000.00| 1,000.00| 1,043,605.00| 1,043.61| 1.95
Limited Class Al Series 03 . AR A T T :
Northlight European
24 |Fundanental CF Class B - 1,000.00| 1,000,000.00| 1,000.00 997,658.70|  997.66| 1.86
Mar23
g5 |Chelodina Feeder Fund Class B 10,000.00| 1,000,000.00 100.00 984,103.37 98.41| 1.84
USD Non-Restricted
Haidar Jupiter International
73.93| 1,457,885.20 . ) . )
26 | i B 08D Lo 457, 19,721.02 897,191.83| 12,136.44| 1.67
Millstreet Credit Offshore
27 | e ieee 0393 500.00|  500,000.00| 1,000.00 502,577.00| 1,005.15| 0.94
Northlight European
28 |Fundamental CF Class A - 500.00|  500,000.00| 1,000.00 499,152.90|  998.31| 0.93
May23
EDL Global Opportunities Fund
) ,753.57 22.97 155,681. 22.24| 0.2
29 | o Cracs on s 189.34| 174,75 922.9 55,681.39| 8 0.29
Atlas Enhanced Fund, Ltd. -
’ 86.05 89,772.78| 1,043. ,630. . )
30 | crace 100009 - ot 1,043.21 77,630.35|  902.11| 0.14
g1 |Steadfast International Ltd. 612.16 60,452.39 98.75 22,407.09 36.60| 0.04
Class A - DI
3o |Steadfast International Ltd. 71.54 5,971.20 83.47 5,890.27 82.34| 0.01
Class A FRI

2023
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«c )
2023 31 54,039,570 7,617,958 1.0035 141
2022 56,064,926 7,903,473 1.0271 145
56,555,761 7,972,666 1.0343 146
10 56,494,460 7,964,024 1.0369 146
11 55,613,381 7,839,818 1.0208 144
12 56,293,551 7,935,702 1.0240 144
2023 53,716,108 7,572,360 1.0293 145
53,573,688 7,552,283 1.0264 145
54,165,169 7,635,664 1.0058 142
53,659,428 7,564,370 1.0077 142
54,152,972 7,633,944 1.0076 142
54,834,069 7,729,959 1.0203 144
53,595,170 7,555,311 1.0234 144

10

IFRS

IFRS

| EERES & U1 0% Y HEEmRORE

(20214108250 (WHMEE) ~ 20235 7H%)

2023 7RAEE | 1 OS5 MEEE1.02344 FIL-HREBEI53,595.1 70K Fb

BRE (EBHEIL)
150 100
HREEEAER)

.95 | — 10D ERRGE (2W) 80
1.00 60
0.75 40
050 20
025 0

20215108258 2022F4RF 10R#% 202348 % 7H=®

X)) 772 FOHREMHNE. SHORET 7 2 FERE GHEB) ISSHREnET.
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2021 10 25 0.35
2023 31
100 x

| IESROHR (BEA—2R)

(%)
100 GE) UNfHEE (%) =100% (a-b) /b
50 +3.80% a=12H%0 1 O REEEHE CHE RO 55
00 b A i . SOAHWENZ ) (2L, 2023FICINTI,
- 1 35% -0.06% 202367 O 1 D27 Rt )
1 g b=RIFED1 2HFD | (IR (HRES O
0.0 —r —rr — (2L 202 VEEICDUVT IR M5 TIlHE (131IL)
(20215108258 EENMEI~ (20221818~ (202351518~
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5,11,12 51,983,755 7,328,150
94,311 13,295
54,206,443 7,641,482
6 121,202 17,086
41,071 5,790
7 4,600 648
166,873 23,524
54,039,570 7,617,958
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1,715,319 241,809
6 (546, 655) (77,062)
(264,785) (37,327)
6 (220,145) (31,034)
(200,746) (28,299)
(140, 437) (19,797)
7 (35,500) (5,004)
8 (18,586) (2.620)
(1,426,854) (201,144)
288,465 40,665
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288,465 40,665
9 54,039,570 7,617,958
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2021 11 ( )
2023 31
288,465 40,665
(51,983, 755) (7,328,150)
(94,311) (13,295)
121,202 17,086
41,071 5,790
4,600 648
(51,622,728) (7,277,256)
56,930,000 8,025,422
(3,178,895) (448,129)
53,751,105 7,577,293

2,128,377 300,037
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14
496,136 500,000 1,982,234 2,013,764
52,364,812
2023 31
Modular Asian Macro Fund Ltd.
2,699.08( 3,136,570.50 3,157,907.25 5.84
Class B Shares Lead
Aristeia International Ltd.
. 1,188.00 2,515,772.81 2,604,452.40 4.82
Class A V Series Bench
Fenghe Asia (USTE) Fund Ltd. 1,583.35| 2,555,141.00 2,563,896.56 4.74
-1-NR FEB 2019 Series T e AR .
Boldhaven fund Class A UR USD
N 2,000.00( 2,000,000.00 2,298,010.76 4.25
Series 11/21
HG Vora Special Opportunities
2,500.00( 2,500,000.00 2,267,796.00 4.20
fund Itd. Class A UR
Serenitas Credit Gamma Offshore
] 1,620.96| 2,141,233.47 2,214,070.66 4.10
Fund Ltd Series Al
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Blue Diamond Non Directional
6,283.11( 2,018,181.92 2,211,977.57 4.09
Fund SP - USD Jan 22
KL Special Opportunities
8,596.90( 2,000,000.00 2,198,393.24 4.07
Fund Ltd USD Class A
Systematica Alternative Markets
11,646.32( 2,000,000.00 2,156,537.06 3.99
Fund LTD - Class A
Glazer Enhanced Offshore Fund, 681.9356( 2,064,416.31 2,085,801.80 3.86
Ltd. USD Class 0810 ) U ’ ’ ) .
Atlas Enhanced Fund, Ltd.
i 1,915.26| 1,915,258.30 2,060,717.98 3.81
Class 10-C-1 - Series
Roubaix Offshore Fund Ltd.
_ 2,000.00( 2,000,000.00 2,050,212.93 3.79
series 0222
Acasta Global Fund - Class D
13,945.24( 2,000,000.00 2,042,266.20 3.78
Alpine Heritage Offshore Fund
] 1,156.91| 2,016,234.25 2,010,691.39 3.72
Ltd. Series 01/22
GCA Enhanced Offshore Fund,
1,572.44| 2,000,447.11 1,987,830.72 3.68
Ltd., Class A 01.07.18
Quantica Managed Futures Fund
13,459.46( 1,973,638.84 1,962,925.89 3.63
Inc. - Class Al USD
EDL Global Opportunities Fund
1,728.56| 1,723,754.13 1,960,433.38 3.63
Ltd. Class C NR/59
DLD Convertible Arbitrage
1,872.96| 2,022,593.84 1,930,056.42 3.57
Offshore Fund Ltd A
Millstreet Credit Offshore
1,500.00 1,500,000.00 1,650,102.00 3.05
Fund Ltd. Class A 11/21
Galton Agency MBS Offshore Fund,
150.00( 1,500,000.00 1,613,820.24 2.99
Ltd. Class A 11/21
Gaoteng Emerging Markets Plus
N 1,500.00 1,500,000.00 1,388,790.00 2.57
Class | Series 0223
Haidar Jupiter International 115.12| 2,270,357.59 1,271,048.58 2.35
Ltd. Class B USD Lead i T T .
Sachen Head Offshore Ltd. 1,250.00| 1,250,000.60 1,090,957.90 2.02
Common Series NR 11/21 T R R .
Scopia PX International Limited
) 847.86| 1,042,602.00 1,056,472.96 1.96
Class Al Series 1
Chelodina Feeder Fund Class B
_ 10,000.00( 1,000,000.00 1,006,408.09 1.86
USD Non-Restricted
Northlight European Fundamental
1,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,419.80 1.85
CF Class B-Mar23
Scopia PX International Limited
] 1,000.00 1,000,000.00 973,549.00 1.80
Class Al Series 03
Millstreet Credit Offshore Fund
500.00 500,000.00 494,172.50 0.91
Ltd. Class A 03/23
Steadfast International Ltd.
4,829.36 482,935.62 405,041.77 0.75
Class A
EDL Global Opportunities Fund
191.23 176,468.84 162,789.50 0.30
Ltd. Class S1 NR/2
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Atlas Enhanced Fund, Ltd.-

84.74 88,343.50 79,146.65 0.15
Class 10-C-1 - S-1
Steadfast International Ltd.

598.62 59,861.63 27,057.68 0.05
Class A - DI
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MS Star Funds

Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2023
31 March
2023
Notes UsD
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 2,128,377
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 3, 14, 12 51,983,755
Other receivables and prepayments 94,311
Total assets 54.206.443
Liabilities
Management fees payable 6 121,202
Other pavables and accruals 41,071
Adnmunistrator fees pavable 7 4,600
Total liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to unitholders) 166,873
Net assets attributable to unitholders 54.039.570
Ldon I ML b /__ﬁ,éﬁ g 4
Sabina Jerrybandan Adam Fox
Authorised Signatory Authorised Signatory

as authorised signatories of
Ogier Global Trustee (Cayman) Limited
as Trustee of MS Star Funds

31 August 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenis.

]
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MS Star Funds

Statement of comprehensive income
Jor the period from 1 November 2021 (date of commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

For the period
from 1 November
2021 (date of

commencement
of operations) to
31 March
2023
Notes USD
Income
Realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 34 1,714,943
Foreign exchange gain on translation 376
Total income 1,715,319
Expenses
Management fees 6 (546,655)
Transaction expenses {264,785)
Performance fees 6 (220,145)
Other operating expenses (200,746)
Start-up costs (140,437)
Administrator fees 4 (35.500)
Trustee fees 8 (18.586)
Total operating expenses (1.426.854)
Increase in net assets attributable to unitholders from
operations for the period 288.465

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MS Star Funds

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders
Jor the period from 1 November 2021 (date of commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

For the period
from 1 November
2021 (date of

commencement
of operations) to
31 March
2023
Note USD
Net assets attributable to unitholders at the beginning of
the period -
[ssue of units during the period 56,930,000
Redemption of units during the period (3.178.893)
Increase in net assets attributable to unitholders from
operations for the period 288.465
Net assets attributable to unitholders at the end of the
period 9 54,039,570

The accompanving notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

83/210



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO000O0n(E37044)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MS Star Funds

Statement of cash flows
Jor the period from 1 November 2021 (date of commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

For the period
from 1 November
2021 (date of

commencement
of operations) to
31 March
2023
Note USD
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to unitholders from
operations for the period 288, 465
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {51,983,755)
Increase in other receivables and prepayments (94.311)
Increase in management fees pavable 121,202
Increase in other pavables and accruals 41.071
Increase in administrator fees pavable 4.600
Net cash used in operating activities (51,622.728)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of units 56,930,000
Pavments on redemption of units (3,178.895)
Net cash provided by financing activities 53,751,105
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents for the period 2.128.377
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 4 2,128,377

The accompanving notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the period from | November 2021 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

1  Fund information

MS Star Funds (the *Fund”) whose registered office is located at Ogier Global (Cayman) Limited,
89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9009, Cayman Islands was established as an
open-ended unit trust under the laws of the Cayman Islands pursuant to the amended and restated
Trust Deed executed by Mita Capital Pte. Ltd. (the “Manager™) and Ogier Global Trustee (Cayman)
Limited (the “Trustee™) (the “Trust Deed™) and registered with Cayvman Islands Authority under the
Cavman Islands Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) on 30 July 2021.

The Fund’s investment activities are managed by thc Manager, which also acts as the Investment
Manager of the Fund, with the administration delegated to ASCENT Fund Services (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. (the “Administrator”).

The Fund commenced operations on 1 November 2021.

The investment objective of the Fund is to provide stable investment returns to the investors over the
long-term while managing risk by seeking fo select the best funds availably globally whilst
maintaining a diversified investment allocation. The Fund will target to achieve attractive absolute
returns while focusing on capital preservation.

The Fund had no emplovees during the period from | November 2021 (date of commencement of
operations) to 31 March 2023,

Capitaliscd terms arc defined within the Private Offering Memorandum (*POM™) of the Fund, unless
otherwise defined herein, which should be read in conjunction with the financial statements.

2 Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS™) which comprise standards and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial assets and
liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss. Other financial assets and financial liabilities arc
stated at amortised cost or redemption amount.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollar (*USD"™) and rounded to the nearest
USD, which is the Fund’s functional currency. The Fund considers USD as the currency that most
faithfully represents the cconomic effect of the underlving transactions, events and conditions.

(d) Comparatives

These are the first financial statements of the Fund which reflect the period from 1 November 2021
(date of commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023 and therefore no comparative figures are
included in these financial statements.
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MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the period from | November 2021 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(e) Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
Judgements, cstimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policics and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities. income and expenscs. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected.

Application of the accounting policies in the preparation of the financial statements requires the
Manager and Trustee to apply judgement involving assumptions and estimates concerning future
cash flows and other developments, including the likelihood, timing or amount of future transactions
or events.

Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability. The determination of what constitutes
‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Fund. The Fund considers observable data to be
that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated. reliable and venfiable. not
proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The investment portfolio of the Fund consists of investments in underlving investment funds which
arc subject to gates, lock ups, halts to redemptions or side pockets and the Fund may make
adjustments to the reported Net Asset Value (“NAV™) of the fund based on these considerations. The
valuation of such mvestments is subject to significant judgement and depends on the availability of
market information. The carrying value of the funds may be materially different to the values
ultimately realised on redemption.

The Fund has made no other significant judgements in applying its accounting policies nor are there
any other sources of estimation uncertainty that mayv have a significant nsk or result in a matenal
adjustment to the carrving amount of assets and liabilities.

3 Significant accounting policies
(a) Financial instruments

(i) Classification
In accordance with IFRS 9, the Fund classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial
recognition into the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities discussed below.

In applying that classification. a financial asset or financial liability is considered to be held for
trading if:

(a) It is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term; or

(b) On initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together, and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

(¢) It is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated
and cffective hedging instrument).
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MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the period from | November 2021 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

3 Significant accounting policies (confinued)
(a) Financial instruments (coniinued)
(i) Classification (continued)

Financial asscts
The Fund classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost or measured at
fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

The entity’s business model for managing the financial asset;
. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assct.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset 1s measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. The Fund includes in this category short-term non-financing receivables
including cash and cash equivalents and other receivables.

Financial assets measured al fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if:

(a) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solelv payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding; or

(b) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows,
or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell; or

(¢) Atinitial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss
when doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

The Fund’s investment portfolio is managed and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The
Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that information to assess the assets’
performance and to make decisions. The Fund has not taken the option to irmevocably designate any
cquity sccuritics as fair value through other comprehensive income. Conscquently, all investments
arc measurcd at fair value through profit or loss.
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MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the period from | November 2021 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

3 Significant accounting policies (confinued)
(a) Financial instruments (coniinued)
(i) Classification (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financtal liabilities measured at foir value through profit or loss
A financial liability is measured at fair value through profit or loss if it meets the definition of held
for trading.

The Fund may make short sales in which a borrowed security 1s sold in anticipation of a decling in
the market value of that securnity, or it may use short sales for various arbitrage transactions. Short
sales are held for trading and are consequently classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as habilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

This category includes all financial liabilities. other than those measured at fair value through profit
or loss. The Fund includes in this category short-term pavables including management fees payable,
other pavables and accruals, and administrator fees pavable.

As such, the Fund classifics all of its investment portfolio as financial asscts or liabilitics as fair value
through profit or loss,

The Fund’s policy requires the Manager and the Trustee to evaluate the information about these
financial asscts and liabilitics on a fair value basis together with other related financial information.

{ii) Recognition
The Fund recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A regular way purchase of financial assets is recognised using trade date accounting. From this date,
any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets or Liabilities are recorded
in the statement of comprehensive income.,

{iii) Initial measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the
statement of financial position at fair value. All transaction costs for such instruments are recognised
directly in profit or loss,

Financial assets and liabilities (other than those classified as at fair value through profit or loss) are
measured initiallv at their fair value plus any directly attributable incremental costs of acquisition or
Issue.
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MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the period from | November 2021 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

3  Significant accounting policies (confinued)
(a) Financial instruments (coniinued)

{iv) Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are re-measured at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of those financial instruments are
recorded in realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets. other than those classified as at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognised or impaired, as well
as through the amortisation process.

Financial liabilities, other than those classified as at fair value through profit or loss. are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised, as well as through the amortisation process.

Fair value measurement principles
Fair value 1s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principle or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Fund has access at that date, The fair value of a liability
reflects its non-performance risk,

The fair value of financial asscts and liabilitics that arc not traded in an active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Fund uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at ¢ach reporting date. These valuation techniques involve a
degree of estimation, the extent of which depends on the instrument’s complexity and the availability
of market based data. The methods and assumptions applied in determining the fair values of each
class of financial assets or financial liabilities are disclosed in note 12,

{(v) Derecognifion

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,
or the Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-
through arrangement and the Fund has:

{a) Transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset; or
(b) Neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Fund has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset (or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Fund’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Fund also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Fund has retained.

89/210



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO000O0n(E37044)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the period from | November 2021 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Financial instruments (coniinued)

v} Derecognition (continued)
The Fund derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

{vi) Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilitics are offsct and the net amounts are reported in the statement of financial
position, when a current legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts exists and there
1s intent to settle on a net basis or to settle the asset and the liability simultaneously.

{vii) fmpairment
Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost are reviewed at cach reporting date, The Fund
applies the general approach in accordance with IFRS 9.

The Fund measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit loss
(“ECL™) if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, If, at the reporting date,
the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Fund shall measure the
loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

The Fund’s approach to ECL reflects a probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
rcasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date about past cvents, current conditions and forecasts of future cconomic conditions, Significant
financial difficultics of the counterparty, probability that the counterparty will enter bankruptey or
financial reorganisation, and default in pavments are all considered indicators that a loss allowance
may be required.

If the credit nisk increases to the point that it is considered to be credit impaired, interest income will
be calculated based on the gross carrving amount adjusted for the loss allowance.

(b) Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to USD,
the functional currency, at the foreign currency closing exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency shall be translated to USD
at the foreign currency exchange rates prevailing at the dates that the values were determined. Non-
monctary items that arc carricd at historical cost in a forcign currency shall be translated to USD
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.

Resulting exchange differences on the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in foreign
currencies are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income as part of the “Realised and
unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”. Realised and unrealised
exchange differences on other assets and labilities are also recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income and disclosed within “Foreign exchange gain on translation™.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the period from | November 2021 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions. Cash
equivalents are short-term highly liguid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and which have an original
contractual maturity date of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.

(d) Expenses
All expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on an accrual basis.

(e) Taxation
The Fund has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands government exempting it from
paving taxes on income, profits or capital gains,

Interest and dividend income received by the Fund mayv be subject to withholding tax imposed in the
country of origin. This income is recorded gross of such taxes and the corresponding withholding
tax is recognised as a separate line item in the statement of comprehensive income.

(f) Units

All units issued by the Fund provide investors with the right to require redemption for cash at the
value proportionate to the unitholders’ unit in the Fund’s net assets at the redemption date. In
accordance with IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation (“IAS 32”), such instruments meet the
definition of puttable instruments, Puttable instruments may be identified as liability or cquity
instruments depending on their features.

The units do not meet the criteria of an equity instrument under IAS 32 and are classified as a
financial liability.

The liability to unitholders is presented in the statement of financial position as “net assets
attributable to unitholders” and is determined based on the residual assets of the Fund after
deducting all other liabilities.

(g) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet
effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 31 March 2023, and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial
statements. None of these are expected to have a material effect on the financial statements of the
Fund.

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 31 March 2023 and have
not been early adopted

Standard: Narrative: Effective Date
Amendments to TAS | Non-current Liabilitics with Covenants 01 Jan 2024
Amendments to [FRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leascback 01 Jan 2024
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the period from | November 2021 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

3 Significant accounting policies {continued)
(h) Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Fund if:
{a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person

1. has control or joint control over the Fund;
ii. has significant influence over the Fund: or
iii. is a member of the key management personnel of the Fund or of a parent of the Fund: or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

i. the entity and the Fund are members of the same group,
ii. one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entitv (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);
iti. the entity and the Fund are joint ventures of the same third party;
iv. one entity is a joint venture of a third entitv and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity,
v. the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Fund or an entity related to the Fund;
vi. the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);
vii. a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and
viii. the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

4  Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 March 2023, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances held with the payment bank of
the Fund, DBS Bank Limited, of USD2,128.377. As at 31 March 2023, no restrictions in the use of
cash and cash equivalents exist.

5 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 March
2023
USD

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Investment in underlying funds 51,983,755
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 51,983,755

Investment in underlving funds
The fair value of investment in the unlisted open-ended investment funds is determined based on

unaudited and unadjusted NAV, The unadjusted NAV is used when the units in a fund are
redecmable at the reportable NAV at, or approximately at, the measurement date. Investment in
underlying funds have been valued based on unaudited NAV since they are non-coterminous with
the Fund.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the period from | November 2021 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

SA Realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For the period ended 31 March 2023, the realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss consist of the following:

For the period
from 1 November
2021 (date of

commencement
of operations) to
31 March
2023
UsD
Realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:
Realised gains 1.685.000
Unrealised gains 20943
Total realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,714,943

6 Investment manager fees

Management fee

Pursuant to the investment management agreement, the Fund pays the Manager an investment
management fee at a rate of 0.9% per annum (0.5% per annum prior to 1 July 2022) on its net asset
value in respect of Class USD Units. Such fees are calculated monthly and pavable quarterly in
arrears,

The management fees for the period are disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income and the
management fees pavable at the period end are disclosed in the statement of financial position.

Performance fee

The Fund pavs the Manager a performance fee in respect of Class USD Units outstanding on cach
valuation date equal to 10%, of the increase in the net asset value of that unit over the previous
highest month or the initial offer price, since the preceding valuation day or date of issue of the
relevant units. The performance fee is calculated monthly and payable quarterly in arrears.

The increase in the net asset value per unit upon which the calculation of the performance is based
represents the profits eamed in respect of each relevant unit during the relevant peniod from the
trading and investment of the assets of the class and related income and dividends, less the cost of
operating the class, which costs include the investment management fee. Profits include both realised
and unrealised gains. No performance fee is paid in respect of the above-mentioned classes of units
unless the increase in the net asset value of that unit exceeds the previous high water mark in the
relevant month.

The performance fees for the period are disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income and the
performance fees payable at the period end are disclosed in the statement of financial position. As at
31 March 2023, there are no outstanding performance fees payable.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the period from | November 2021 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

7 Administrator fees

The Fund has entered into an administration agreement with ASCENT Fund Services (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd., to provide the following administrative services.

Fund accounting ‘administrarion
The Administrator is entitled to receive a monthly administration fee at an annual rate as follow:

Asset Under Management Basis Point (annualised)

{(Monthly Valuation)
First USD 100 million 4
Next USD 100 million 3
Thereafter 2

The fund accounting/administration fee i1s subject to a minimum monthly fee of USD2.000
(USD24,000 per annum) for the first year and USD2,300 (USD27,600 per annum) for subsequent
year. The accounting/administration fee is calculated monthly and payable annually in arrears.

The Administrator also provides the following services, and charges fees as agreed from time to
time.

Financial statements preparation and audit liaison

The Administrator is entitled to charge a financial statements preparation and audit liaison for the
preparation of each set of annual financial statements and for the preparation of each set of interim
financial statements.

Registrar and transfer agency
For the provision of registrar and transfer agency fees the administrator is entitled to charge a
transaction fee per investor transaction for the Fund.

The Administrator is also reimbursed for all properly incurred and approved out of pocket expenses.

The Administrator’s fees for the period are disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income and
the Administrator’s fees payable at the period end are disclosed in the statement of financial position.

8  Trustee fees

The Trustee shall be entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Fund, a fee equal to USD17,500 per
annum. Such remuneration may be increased in accordance with the Trustee's terms and conditions
in force from time to time but only with the consent of the Manager. In addition the Trustee is entitled
to reimbursement by the Fund of all out of pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance
of its duties under the Trust Deed.

The Trustee will also receive a one time set up fee of USDS,500,
The trustee fees for the period are disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income and the trustee

fees payable at the period end are disclosed in the statement of financial position. As at 31 March
2023, there are no outstanding trustee fees payable.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the period from | November 2021 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

9  Capital units

Capital Management

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unitholders. The net assets
attributable to unitholders can change significantly on a monthly basis as the Fund is subject to
monthly subseriptions and quarterly redemptions at the discretion of unitholders. The Fund’s
objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concemn in
order to provide retumns for unitholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong
capital basc to support the development of the investment activitics of the Fund.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Fund’s policy is to perform the following:

*  Monitor the level of monthly subscriptions and quarterly redemptions of the Fund: and
+ Redeem and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Fund,

The Manager monitor capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to unitholders.
There were no changes in the Fund’s approach to capital management during the period.

Unit elass

All unit classes of the Fund participate equally in such net assets of the Fund as are represented by
the Fund on liquidation and in any dividends and other distributions attributable to the Fund as may
be declared.

Movement in unitholders of the Fund for the period from | November 2021 (date of commencement
of operations) to 31 March 2023 was as follows:

Units at the Units at the

beginning of Units Units end of the

Unit class the period issued redeemed period
Class USD Units - 5695294563 (3.102,03533)  53.850910.30

Net Asset Value {“NAV™) per unit as at 31 March 2023:

Unit class 31 March 2023

USD

Class USD Units 1.0035
19
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commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

10 Net asset value per unit

11

The following schedule shows the reconciliation between the NAV determined in accordance with
the POM and the NAV determined in accordance with IFRS.

The POM states that the start-up costs should be amortised in 60 months. IAS 38, Intangible Assets
(“IAS 38") states that start-up costs should be expensed when incurred.

31 March

2023

USD

Net assets attributable to unitholders in accordance with the POM 54.165.169
Adjustments

Unamortised start-up costs (125,599)

Net assets attributable to unitholders in accordance with [FRS 54,039.570

Number of outstanding units 53.850.910.30

NAV per unit in accordance with the POM 1.0058

NAY per unit in accordance with IFRS 1.0035

Financial instrument disclosures and associated risks
The principal investment objective of the Fund is disclosed in note 1.

The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including market price
risk, interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
as a result of changes in market prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual security or its issuer or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. Market risk
comprises market price risk, interest rate sk and currency risk.

Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors speeific to the individual financial
instruments or its issuer, or factors affecting similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The following table analyses the Fund’s exposures to price risk and sets out the concentration of the
investment assets at 31 March 2023,

31 March 2023

%o of the
Fund’s total
Fair value USS assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments in underlving funds 51,983,755 95.90%
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11 Financial instrument disclosures and associated risks (confinued)
(a) Market risk (confinued)
Market price risk (continued)

Asat 31 March 2023, had the fair value of the investments in underlyving funds increased by 5% with
all other variables held constant, profit before tax would have increased by approximately
USD2,599,188. A 5% decrease in the fair value of the investments in underlying funds would have
an e¢qual but opposite cffect.

The funds, to which the Fund subscribes, indirectly expose the Fund to market price risk. This risk
15 monitored and managed by the investment managers of the funds. The funds’ managers may try
to mitigate these risks but there can be no assurance that such strategies will be implemented. or if
implemented, will be effective. Because of this indirect exposure the sensitivity analysis discussed
above may not fully indicate the total effect of the market price risk exposure of the Fund.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Fund has no interest-bearing financial instruments except for cash at banks which is subject to
normal market related short-term interest rates. Therefore, the Fund is not exposed to significant
interest rate risks. The cash balance at period end docs not represent the Fund exposure to interest
ratc risk during the reporting period.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk exposure arises from the Fund investing
in financial instruments and entering into transactions which are denominated in currencies other
than its functional currency.

The funds, to which the Fund subscribes, may invest in currencies different to the functional curreney
of the Fund and therefore indirectly expose the Fund to currency risk. This risk is monitored and
managed by the investment managers of the funds. The Manager may try to mitigate these risks by
investing in forward currency contracts but there can be no assurance that such strategies will be
implemented, or if implemented, will be effective.

Asat 31 March 2023, the majority of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss arc traded
in USD. As the Fund’s asscts and liabilitics arc predominately denominated in the functional
currency, the Fund is not exposed to material currency risk.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
or commitment that it has entered into with the Fund. The camving values of financial assets
(excluding any investments in underlving funds) best represents the maximum credit risk exposure
at the reporting date.

21

97/210



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO000O0n(E37044)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the period from | November 2021 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023

11 Financial instrument disclosures and associated risks (confinued)

fb)  Credit risk {continued)
At 31 March 2023, the Fund financial assets exposed to credit risk amounted to the following, and
financial assets are classified into credit risk classes as follows:

31 March 2023 High Average Low No
quality quality quality rating Total
UusD USD UsD USD Ush
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2.128.377 - - - 2,128,377
Other receivables - - - 75.786 75.786
Total 2.128.377 - - 75.786 2.204.163

The high quality. average quality and low quality credit risk classes are made up of the following
credit ratings:

Standard & Poor’s  Moody’s Investors Service Fitch
High quality AAA -BBB- Aaa— Baa3 AAA - BBB-
Average quality BB+ - BB- Bal — Ba3 IN/A
Low quality B+-B- Bl1-B3 B+—B-

The Fund's cash and cash equivalents are held mainly with DBS Bank Limited which as at 31 March
2023 has a credit rating of AA- as determined by Standard & Poor's,

Expected credit loss

The Fund measures credit risk and ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised cost using
probability of default, exposure at default and loss given default. Management considers both
historical analysis and forward-looking information in determining any ECL. Management consider
the probability of default to be close to zero as these instruments have a low risk of default and the
counterpartics have a strong capacity to meet their contractual obligations in the near term. As a
result, no loss allowance has been recognised based on 12-month ECLs as any such impairment
would be wholly insignificant to the Fund,

(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from
its financial liabilities.

The Fund’s POM provides for the quarterly redemption of units and it is therefore exposed to the
liquidity risk of meeting unitholder redemptions. The Fund’s policy only allows for redemptions on
the first day of each calendar quarter and unithelders must provide 100 days notice.

Underlying investment funds may have applied redemption and subscription restrictions in order to
protect investors or to ensure future liquidity needs.
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11

12

Financial instrument disclosures and associated risks (confinued)

(¢) Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below shows the contractual, undiscounted cash flows of the Fund’s financial liabilities at
the reporting date. For the analysis of the liquidity gap, the liabilities of the Fund are included.

31 March 2023 Less than Between Greater than Indefinite
1 month 1-6 months 6 months maturity Total
IR )] USDb usp usb UsD
Financial liahilities
Management fees
pavable 121,202 - - - 121,202
Other payables and
accruals 41.071 - - - 41,071
Administrator fees
pavable 4.600 - - - 4,600
et assets atiributable
10 unitholders - 54,039,570 - - 54,039,570
Liquidity gap 166.873 54,039,570 - - 54206443

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position

The tables below provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair valug is

observable:

= Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

=  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices): and

= Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobscrvable inputs).

31 March 2023 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
USD USD USD Ush
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Investment in underlying funds 51,983,755 - 51,983.755 -
Total 51,983.755 - 51,983,755 -
23
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12 Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position (continued)

In certain cases. the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy. In such cases, an investment’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Assessing the significance of a
particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors
specific to the asset or liability. The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires
significant judgement by the Fund. The Fund considers observable data to be that market data that is
rcadily available, regularly distributed or updated. reliable and wverifiable, not proprictary, and
provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

Valuation meth

Fair vatue determined usine a valuation technigue

Where the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is determined using a
valuation technique. the methods and assumptions will vary according to the instrument being
valued.

The Fund's investments in underlying funds are priced based on the funds’ NAV as calculated by

the administrators of such funds as at the reporting date.

The Fund classifies underlving funds which allow for daily redemptions in level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy:.

If the Fund has the ability to redeem its investment at NAV at the measurement date, the investment
will be categorised as a level 2 fair value measurement and if the Fund cannot redeem its investment
at NAV at the measurement date but the investment mav be redeemable at a future date, the reporting
entity considers the length of time until the investment will be redeemable in determining whether it
will be categorised as level 2 or level 3.

Underlying imvestment funds may have applied redemption and subscription restrictions in order to
protect investors or to ensure future hquidity needs.

Transfers

The Fund’s transfers between levels are assumed to occur on the last day of the reporting period.
There were no transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy during the period ended 31
March 2023,

13 Related party transactions

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between related partics
and the Fund, regardless of whether a price has been charged. Partics are considered to be related if
onc party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial or operational decisions or is part of key management of the Fund. The
following provides details on the related parties of the Fund and transactions with the related parties.
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13 Related party transactions (continued)

(a) Trustee

The listing of the Trustee is shown on page 1. Details of Trustee’s fees charged by Trustee during
the period and outstanding at the reporting date are disclosed in the statement of comprehensive
income and note 8.

(b) Manager

Details of management and performance fees charged by the Investment Manager during the period
and outstanding at the reporting date arc disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income and
note 6.

All related party transactions were made at arm’s length on normal commercial terms and conditions,
unless othenwise stated.

14 Events after the reporting date

After the reporting date, 496,136 units (USD3500,000) and 1,982,234 units (USD2,013,764) of the
Class USD Units were issued and redeemed respectively. Accordingly, the Class USD Units
outstanding on the date when the financial statements were authorised for issue amounted to
52.364.812 units.
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as af 31 March 2023
Secimity Security R— Total Total Cost | Market Value |% of Net
1y Type Y Position (USD) (USD) Assets
Modular Asian Macro Fund Lid. Class B Hedge
q 4
i oo | USD | 269908 | 313657050 | 3.157.907.25 | 584
Aristeia International Lid, Class A V Series | Hedge USD 1.188.00 | 2.515772.81 | 2.604.452.40 182
Bench Fund
Fenghe Asia (USTE) Fund Lid-I'NRFEB | Hedge | \ony | | sg335| 255504100 | 256380656 47
2019 Series Fund
Boldhaven fund Class AUR USD Series | Hedge | ey | 500000 | 2,00000000 | 220801076 | 425
1121 Fund
HG Vora Special Opportunities fund lid. Hedge :
i o | USD | 2.50000 | 250000000 | 2.267.79.00 | 420
Sercnitas Credit Gamma Offshore Fund Lid| Hedee | yony | 4 gagi | 200123347 | 221800066 | 410
Serics Al Fund
Blue Diamond Non Directional Fund SP - Hedge .
i e | USD | e2saan | 201818192 | 221197757 | 409
KL Special Opporiunities Fund Lid USD Hedge
Chn funy | USD | 8596.90 | 200000000 | 219839324 [ 4.07
Systemalica Alternative Markets Fund LTD | Hedge |, cpy [ 1) c0655 | 200000000 | 2.156537.06 | 3.90
- Class A Fund
Glazer Enhanced Offshore Fund, Ltd. USD | Hedge | (;ory | o1 0356 | 2.06441631 | 208580180 | 3.86
Class 0810 Fund
Atlas Enhanced Fund, L1d. - Class 10-C-1 - | Hedge | ,cry | 9156 | 101525830 | 206071708 381
Series Fund
Roubaix Cffshore Frenk Lud-secies 0222 i;ﬁ“ USD | 2.000.00 | 200000000 | 205021293 | 3.79
Acasts Global Fnad - Class D I:Zdngdc USD | 13.945.24 | 200000000 | 204226620| 378
Alpine Heritage Offshore Fund Lid. Series | Hedge | oy | 415001 | 201623425 | 201060130 | 372
01/22 Fund
GCA Enhanced Offshore Fund, Lid., Class | Hedge :
i Pt | USD | 157244 | 2000447.01 | 198783072 | 3.8
Quantica Managed Futures Fund Inc.- Class| Hedge - .
iy P | USD [ 1345946 | 197363884 | 196292589 | 3.63
EDL Global Opportunities Fund Ltd. Class | Hedge :
Faaciyo P | USD | 172856 | 172375413 | 196043338 | 3.63
DLD Convertible Arbitrage Offshore Fund | Hedge | oy | o990 06 | 202250384 | 193005642 3.57
Lid A Fund
’;"Iﬂsl‘m‘ Credit Offshore Fund Lid, Cliss A };ﬁ“ UsD | 1.500.00 | 1,500,000.00 | 1.650,102.00 | 3.05
Galton Agency MBS Offshore Fund,Ltd. Hedge ]
Class A 11/21 Fund uUsD 150,00 | 1,500,000,00 | 1,613.820.24 2.99
i, Hedge | yony | 1.50000 | 150000000 | 138879000 | 257
Series 0223 Fund
Haidar Jupiter International Lid. Class B Hedge . ; ?
USD Lead Fund uUsD 115.12 | 2.270.357.59 | 1.271.048.58 235
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e Security Curency Total Total Cost | Market Value |% of Net
i Type Position (USD) (USD) Assets

Sachem Head Offshore Ltd. Common Series] Hedge =
romsta o | USD | 125000 | 125000060 | 1.090957.90 | 2.02
Scopia X Internatiors| Linited Cliss AT | Hedge- | e | dinié | Losonos | nossamis | 196
Series | Fund
Chelodina Feeder Fund Class B USD Non- | Hedge | e |16 600 00 | 1,000.000.00 | 1.006.408.09 |  1.86
Restnicted Fund
Northlight European Fundamental CF Class | Hedge y "
i oy | USD | 100000 | 1,000.000.00 | 1000419.80 | 185
Scolpm PX International Limited Class Al Hedge USD 1.000.00 | 1.000.000.00 973.549.00 1.80
Series 03 Fund
Millstreet Credit Offshore Fund Ltd. Class A Hedge | (;or, | 50000 | s0000000 | 49417250 | o091
03/23 Fund
Siesiiect Rufemariomal Ll Sl i‘:ﬂilc USD | 482936 | 48293562 40504177 075
EDL Global Opportunities Fund Ltd. Class | Hedge : :
s g | Usp 19123 | 17646884 |  162.789.50 |  0.30
Aros Eehncn Fend. L Q0L s | HeoeR: | aps 8474 | 8834350 |  79.14665 | 0.15
S-1 Fund
Steadfast International Ltd. Class A - DI I;I:ig;e USD 598.62 50.861.63 27.057.68 0.05
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(2023 )
55,219,144 7,784,243
1,623,974 228,932
53,595,170 7,555,311
52,364,811
1.0234 144
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038987
#07-07A

10
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2023 1,000,000 106
1,000,000
2023 31 UFJ
105.90
2019
CEO
Cl10
2019
CMS101272

MAS
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2023

94,319,555 13,296
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2023 31
31
2023 2022
9 96,836 10,255 180,171 19,080
74,924 7,934 40,361 4,274
9 43,316 4,587 101,170 10,714
215,076 22,777 321,702 34,068
4 47,427 5,023 213,889 22,651
8 178,626 18,916 142,609 15,102
9 87,637 9,281 74,062 7,843
5 1,000,000 105,900 906,435 95,991
1,313,690 139,120 1,336,995 141,588
1,528,766 161,896 1,658,697 175,656
6 1,000,000 105,900 1,000,000 105,900
(224,610) (23,786) (259,054) (27,434)
775,390 82,114 740,946 78,466
8 329,638 34,909 399,741 42,333
10 48,946 5,183 177,049 18,749
26,456 2,802 25,353 2,685
405,040 42,894 602,143 63,767
7 121,641 12,882 90,156 9,548
14 5,157 546
8 84,123 8,909 84,123 8,909
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10 142,572 15,098 136,172 14,421
348,336 36,889 315,608 33,423
753,376 79,783 917,751 97,190
1,528,766 161,896 1,658,697 175,656

2023 31

2023 2022

8 1,154,325 122,243 742,174 78,596
11 20,000 2,118 23,886 2,530
(1,142,606) (121,002) (660,940) (69,994)
12 2,725 289 (3.127) (331)
13 34,444 3,648 101,993 10,801
14 (7,323) (776)
34,444 3,648 94,670 10,026
34,444 3,648 94,670 10,026

2023 31
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2021 1,000,000 105,900 (353,724)  (37,459) 646,276 68,441
94,670 10,026 94,670 10,026
2022 31 1,000,000 105,900 (259,054)  (27,434) 740,946 78,466
2022 1,000,000 105,900 (259,054)  (27,434) 740,946 78,466
34,444 3,648 34,444 3,648
2023 31 1,000,000 105,900 (224,610) (23,786) 775,390 82,114
2023 31
2023 2022
34,444 3,648 101,993 10,801
9 62,529 6,622 34,650 3,669
7,263 769

12 9,579 1,014 6,279 665

12 (12,304) (1,303) (3,152) (334)

101,511 10,750 139,770 14,802

166,462 17,628 (204,304) (21,636)

(36,017) (3,814) (142,609) (15,102)

31,485 3,334 2,853 302

(34,563) (3.660) (40, 361) (4,274)

(70,103) (7,424) (84,123) (8,909)

( ) 158,775 16,814 (328,774) (34,817)
(5,157) (546) (2,166) (229)

( ) 153,618 16,268 (330,940) (35,047)
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67,479 7,146 25,727 2,724
12,304 1,303 3,101 328
79,783 8,449 28,828 3,053
10 (123,857) (13,116) (77,625) (8,220)
10 (8,716) (923) (5,860) (621)
(132,573) (14,039) (83,485) (8,841)
100,828 10,678 (385,597) (40,835)
804,972 85,247 1,190,569 126,081
(7,263) (769)
5 898,537 95,155 804,972 85,247
2023 31
31
069534
#24-02
31 31
2023 31 10
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FRS 109

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

FRS 37
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3.12

2022

FRS FRS

2023 2022

208,957
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430
21,416
10,906
32,322 209,387
15,105 4,502
47,427 213,889
2023 2022
500,437 804,972
499,563 101,463
1,000,000 906,435
(101,463) (101, 463)
898,537 804,972
2023 2022
657,950 363,404
9 10
342,041 543,021
1,000,000 906,435
4.80 1.75
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2023 2022
1,000,000 1,000,000
2023 2022
6,184 188
1,223
7,899 1,926
59,600 5,983
51,678
47,958 29,158
121,641 90,156
2023 2022
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421,200 251,667
634,016 289,158
99,109 201,349
1,154,325 742,174
60
60
2023 2022
178,626 142,609

413,761 483,864
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31
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31

2023

178,626
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2023 2022

70,103 84,123

126/210

2025

415,780
(200,959)

214,821
2,254
(23,060)

194,015

34,650

34,650
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2022
2023

2023
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31
31
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62,529
97,179
180,171
96,836
2023 2022
8,716 5,860
(5,204) (3,101)
27,398
2023 2022
132,573 83,485
5,204 2022 3,101
2023 2022
91,011 79,511
43,591 79,511
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24,147
134,602 183,169
(3,649) (7,937)
130,953 175,232
43,316 101,170
87,637 74,062
130,953 175,232
15,000 2022
2023 2022
313,221
2,154 390,846
8,716 5,860
10,870 396,706
(8,716) (5,860)
(123,857) (77,625)
(132,573) (83, 485)
31 191,518 313,221
48,946 177,049
142,572 136,172
191,518 313,221
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2023 2022
4 2025 412,674 191,518 410,463 313,221
11.
2023 2022
7,506
1,380
20,000
15,000
20,000 23,886
JSS 2020
COVID-19
12. C )
2023 2022
5,204 3,101
7,100 51
12,304 3,152
(8,716) (5,860)
(863) (419)
(9.579) (6,279)

2,725 (3.,127)
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2023 2022
557,643 249,292
CPF 13,600 13,940
398,113 241,000
62,529 34,650
13,301 32,155
41,092 25,512
13,950
) 20,753 (7,506)
(51,678) (4,674)
2023 2022
5,157
2,166
7,323
34,444 101,993
17 2022 17
5,855 17,339

(885) (10,595)
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(7,970) 1,839
2,970
(3,426)
2,166
7,323
2023 2022
485,577 468,106
2023 2022
557,643 249,292
13,600 13,940

571,243 263,232
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2023 2022
15,000
27,398
2023 2022
51,800
20,000
67,479 25,727
5,204 3,101
(24,900) (27,477)
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(
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2023

2023

2023

31

31

130,953

2023

31
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100
30
(ECL) ECL
2022 31
2022 175,232
12
31 1,000,000 2022 906,435
S P AA-
12
ECLs
2022 31
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2023 31
191,518 210,661 160,507 49,154
* 121,641 121,641 121,641
313,159 332,302 282,148 49,154
2022 31
313,221 326,979 146,097 180,882
* 38,478 38,478 38,478
351,699 365,457 184,575 180,882
*
)

17
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31 31
2022 2023 31 10
Mita Capita! Ple Lid.
Firwicial statements
Year ended 31 March 2023
Statement of financial position
As at 31 March 2023
Note 2023 2022
A S
Assets
Right-of-use asset 9 96,836 180,171
Deposits 74,924 40361
Finance lease receivables 9 43316 101,170
Non-current assets 215,076 321,702
Trade and other receivables 4 47427 213 889
Contract assets 8 178,620 142.609
Finance lease receivables 9 87.637 74,062
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1.000.000 906.435
Current assets 1.313,690 1,336,995
Total assets 1.528.766 1,658,697
Equity
Share capital 6 1,000,000 1,000,000
Accumulated losses (224.610) (259,054)
Total equity 773,390 740,946
Liabilities
Contract liabilitics 8 329,638 399,741
Lease liabilities 10 48,946 177.049
Provision for reinstalement cost 26,456 25353
Non-current liabilitics 405,040 602,143
Trade and other payables 7 121.641 90,156
Income tax pavables 14 - 3.157
Contract liabilitics 8 84,123 84.123
Lease liabilities 10 142,572 136,172
Current liabilities 348,336 315.608
Total liabilities 753,376 917,751
Total equity and liabilities 1.528,766 1.658.697

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

FS1
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Statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 March 2023

Revenue

Other operating income

Administrative expenses

Finance cost. net

Profit before tax

Tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the vear. net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the vear

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Mita Capital Pte. Lid.
Financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2023

Note 2023 2022
b S
8 1.154.325 742.174
11 20,000 23 886
(1.142,606) (660,940)
12 2,725 (3.127)
13 34,444 101,993
14 = (7.323)
34 444 94,670
34,444 94,670
FS2
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Mita Capital Ple. Lid.

Financial stalements
Year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of changes in equity
Year ended 31 March 2023

Share Accumulated

capital losses Total
5 b 5

At 1 June 2021 1,000,000 (353.724) 646.276
Profit for the year/Total comprehensive

income for the vear - 94,670 94.670
At 31 May 2022 1,000,000 (239.054) 740,946
At 1 June 2022 1,000,000 (239.034) 740,946
Profit for the vear/Total comprehensive

income for the year - 34.444 34.444
At 31 March 2023 1,000,000 (224.610) 775.390

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

FS3
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Mita Capital Ple. Lid.
Financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of cash flows
Year ended 31 March 2023

Note 2023 2022
S S

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 34.444 101,993
Depreciation expense - ROU asset 9 62,529 34.650
Unrealised foreign exchange loss 7.263 -
Finance costs 12 9,579 6,279
Finance income 12 (12.304) (3,152)

101.511 139.770
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables 166,462 (204.304)
Contract assets (36.017) (142.609)
Trade and other payables 31,485 2,853
Deposit (34,563) (40,361)
Contract liabilities (70,103) (84,123)
Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 158,775 (328.774)
Income tax paid (5.157) (2.166)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 153,618 (330,940)
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipt of sublease payment 67.479 25,727
Interest received 12.304 3.101
Net cash generated from investing activities 79,783 28,828
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of lease liability 10 (123,857) (77.625)
Interest paid 10 (8.716) (3.860)
Net cash used in financing activities (132,573) (83,483)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 100,828 (385.597)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yvear 804,972 1,190,569
Effect of exchange fluctuations on cash held (7.263) -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5 898,537 304,972

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

FS4
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Mita Capital Ple. Ltd.
Financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2023

Notes to the financial statements
These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 August 2023,

Domicile and activities
Mita Capital Pte. Ltd. (the “Company™) is a privatc company limited by sharcs which is
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. The immediate and ultimate holding company is Mita

Securities Co.. Ltd. a private company incorporated in Japan.

The registered office of Mita Capital Pte. Ltd. is located at 105 Cecil Street, #24-02 The Octagon,
Singapore 069534,

The principal activitics of the Company arc those of provision of management consultant and
investment advisory services.

During the financial period. the Company changed its financial year end from 31 May to 31 March
and accordingly. the financial statements for the current period cover a period of 10 months from
1 June 2022 to 31 March 2023. The comparative amounts presented for the total comprehensive

income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company. and related disclosure notes are not
entirely comparable.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards
in Singapore ('FRS").

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where otherwise
described in the accounting notes set out below.,

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Singapore dollar (*S$7). which is the Company’s
functional currency,

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies

and the reported amounts of assets. liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
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Mita Capital Ple. Lid.
Financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2023

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
alfected.

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted arc consistent with those of the previous financial period except
in the current financial year, the Company has adopled all the new and revised standards which
are effective for annual financial periods beginning on 1 June 2022.

The adoption of these standards does not have a material effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements, except as explained in Note 2.5, which addresses changes in
accounting policies.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to the functional currency at the exchange
ratc at that date. The forcign currency gain or loss on mongtary items is the difference between
amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year. adjusted for cffective
interest and payments during the vear, and the amortised cost in forcign currency translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the vear,

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items in a forcign currency that are measured in terms of historical
cost arc translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
differences arising on translation are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Non-derivative financial asseis and financial liabilities

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other linancial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party Lo the
contractual provisions of the instrument,

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly

attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade reccivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

FS6
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Mita Capital Pte. Ltd.
Financial stalements
Year ended 31 March 2023

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
Non-derivative financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial assct is classified as measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

Financial assets ar amortised cost

A financial asset is measurced at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss ('FVTPL"):

e itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows: and

# its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solelv payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and
information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

& the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice, These include whether management’'s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilitics or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets:

* how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

# the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed:

* how managers of the business arec compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

# the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods. the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition
are not considered sales for this purpose. consistent with the Company 's continuing recognition
of the assets.

Non-derivative financial asseis: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments
of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. “Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time
and for other basic lending risks and costs (¢.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as
a profit margin.
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In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the company
considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash Mows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features:
prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (¢.g. non-recourse
features).

* 8 & @

A prepavment feature is consistent with the solely pavments of principal and interest criterion if
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include rcasonable additional compensation for carly
termination of the contract. Additionally. for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount
or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an
amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which mayv also include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature
15 insignificant at initial recognition.

Non-derivative financial assels: Subsequen! measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequentlv measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-derivative financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost. These financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. They are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when:
o the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire: or
« it fransfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which either
- substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred;
or

- the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.
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Transferred assets are not derecognised when the Company enters into transactions whereby it
transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial position, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derccognises a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different. in which case a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value,

On derecognition of a linancial liability. the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when. and only when. the Company currently has a legally enforceable right
1o set of T the amounts and it intends cither 1o settle them on a net basis or to realise the assct and
settle the liability simultancously.

(v) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand and margin deposits.

33 Impairment
(i) Non-derivative financial assets and contract assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses ("ECL”) on financial asscts
measured at amortised cost, contract asscts (as defined in FRS 115) and finance lease receivables.

Loss allowances of the Company are measured on either of the following bases:

* 12-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months afier the reporting date (or for a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months); or

e Lifetime ECLs: these arc ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument or contract asset.

Simplified approach

The Company applics the simplificd approach to provide for ECLs for all trade reccivables
(including lecase receivables) and contract assets. The simplified approach requires the loss
allowance to be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

General approach

The Company applies the general approach to provide for ECLs on all financial assets measured

at amortised cost. Under the general approach, the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs at initial recognition.
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At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. When credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and includes forward-looking information,

Il credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition or il the credit quality of the
financial instruments improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is
morg than 60 days past duc.

The Company considers a financial asset (o be in default when:

e the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, withoul recourse by
the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
* the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Company considers a contract asset to be in default when the customer is unlikely to pay its
contractual obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such
as realising security (if any is held).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are probability-weighted estimates of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). ECLs are
discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

Al each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
arc credit-impaired. A financial assct is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial difTiculty of the debtor;
a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past duc;
the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise: or
& it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for linancial assets measured at amortised cost and contract assets are deducted
from the gross carrving amount of these assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the company
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows Lo repay the amounts subject to the write-ofl. However, financial assets that are wrilten
off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(ii) Non-financial assets

The carrving amounts of the Company s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. IF any such indication exists, the
asscts’ recoverable amounts are estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrving amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
("CGU") exceeds its estimated recoverable amount,

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal. In assessing value in use. the estimated Muture cash fMlows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing.
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or CGUs.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in prior periods
are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

34 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity. net of any tax effects.

3.5 Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past cvent, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefils will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of
the discount is recognised as finance cost.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of business is recognised when
the Company satisfies a performance obligation ("PO’) by transferring control of a promised good
or service to the customer. A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over
time. The amount of revenue recognised is the amount of the transaction price allocated to the
satisfied PO.

The transaction price is allocated to each PO in the contract on the basis of the relative stand-
alone selling prices of the promised goods or services. The individual standalone selling price of
a good or service that has not previously been sold on a stand-alone basis, or has a highly variable
selling price. is determined based on the residual portion of the transaction price after allocating
the transaction price to goods and/or services with observable stand-alone selling prices. A
discount or variable consideration is allocated to onc or more, but not all, of the performance
obligations if it relates specifically to those performance obligations.

Transaction price is the amount of consideration in the contract to which the Company expecis to
be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services. The transaction price may
be fixed or variable and is adjusted for time value of money if the contract includes a significant
financing component. Consideration payable to a customer is deducted from the transaction price
if the Company does not receive a separate identifiable benefit from the customer. When
consideration is variable, the estimated amount is included in the transaction price to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal of the cumulative revenue will not occur when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved.

Revenue is recognised at a point in time or over time following the timing of satisfaction of the
PO. If a PO is satisfied over time. revenue is recognised based on the percentage of completion
reflecting the progress towards complete satisfaction of that PO.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use ol an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract 1o each lease component on the basis of its relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property the Company has elected not to separate
non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease
component,

The Company recogniscs a right-of-usc assct and a Icase liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs o dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located. less any lease incentives
received.
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-ofl-use asset
reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In thai case the right-of-use asset will
be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis
as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses. if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined. the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally. the
Company uscs its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various
external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and tvpe
of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise fixed payments,
including in-substance fixed payments.

The lease liability is measured at amorlised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the Company 's estimate of the amount expected to be payvable under
a residual value guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase. extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease pavment.

When the leasc liability is remeasurcd in this way. a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meeting the definition of investment
property and lease liabilities separately in the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of
low-value assets and short-term leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

As a lessor

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lecase component, the Company

allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices.
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When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease. not with reference to the underlying asset. Il a head lease
is a shori-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it
classifics the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Company applics FRS 113
to allocate the consideration in the contract.

The Company applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in FRS 109 to the net
investiment in the lease (see note 9). The Company further regularly reviews estimated
unguaranteed residual values used in calculating the gross investment in the lease.

Rental income from sub-leased property is recognised as "other operating income .

Finance income and finance costs

Interest income or expense are recognised in the profit or loss using the effective interest method.
Emplovee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee,
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts, Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related services are
rendered by employees.

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
Government grants

Government grants related to co-funding of salarics and wages are recognised initially as deferred
income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Company

will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. These grants are then recognised in profit
or loss as ‘other operating income’ on a systematic basis.
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Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred 1ax are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprchensive income.

The Company has determined that interest and penaltics related to income taxes, including
uncertain tax treatments. do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for
them under FRS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year.
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and anv adjustment to tax
pavable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best
cstimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to
income taxes, if any. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilitics are ofTset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilitics for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences on the initial recognition of assels or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss.

Temporary differences in relation to a right-of-usc assct and a lease liability for a specific lease
are regarded as a net package (the lease) for the purpose of recognising deferred tax.

The measurement of deferred taxes reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they reverse. based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantivelv enacted by the reporting date, and reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if
any.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets. and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entitics, but they intend to settle current tax liabilitics and asscts on a net
basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultancously.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credils and deductible
temporary differences. to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary difference is
insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full. then future taxable profits, adjusted for
reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered. based on the business plans of the
Company. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profits improves.
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Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be

used.

New standards and interpretations not adopted

A number of new standards, interpretations and amendments to standards are cffective for annual
periods beginning after | June 2022 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Company
has not early adopted the new or amended standards and interpretations in preparing these

Mnancial statements.

Trade and other receivables

2023 2022
5 S
Trade receivables - 208,957
Amount due from immediate holding company
(non-trade) - 430
Amount due from related company (non-trade) 21,416 -
Other receivables 10,906 -
32322 209387
Prepayments 15,105 4,502
47.427 213,889

Credit risks and loss allowance

The Company’s exposure to credit risks and loss allowance for trade and other receivables are

disclosed in Note 16.

Amounts due from related parties

Amount due from related parties (non-trade) is unsecured, interest-frec and repavable on demand,
There is no allowance for doubtful debts arising from these outstanding balances as the ECL is

not matenal,

Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
b} S

Cash at bank 500,437 804,972
Fixed deposits 499,563 101.463
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in statement of

financial position 1,000,000 906,435
Less: Fixed deposit pledged (101,463) (101.463)
Cash and cash equivalent as stated in statement of

cash flows 898,537 804,972
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Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022
8 s
United States dollar 637,950 363,404
Japanese Yen 9 10
Singapore dollar 342.041 543.021
1,000,000 906,435

The interest rate of the fixed deposit is at 4.80% for United States dollar and 1.75% for Singapore
dollar (2022: 0.00%) per annum. Fixed deposit is pledged for credit card facilitics granted to the
Company,

Share capital
2023 2022
Number Number
of ordinary  of ordinary
shares shares
Fully paid ordinary shares, with no par value:
At beginning of vear and at end of year 1.000,000 1.000,000

The holder of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and
arc entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard
to the Company's residual assets.

Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for sharcholder and to
provide an adequate return to shareholder by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk.

The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The capital structure of the
Company comprises only of issucd capital and accumulated profits. The Company manages the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristic of the underlying assets. In order to achieve an optimal capital structure,
the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholder, issue new shares or obtain
borrowings externally andfor from related companies. The Company’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from the prior financial vear.

The Company is subject to base capital requirement pursuant to Securities and Futures (Financial
and Margin Requirements for Holders of Capital Market Services Licenses) Regulations. The
Company has complied with the base capital requirement throughout the vear,
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Trade and other payables

2023 2022
b s
Trade payables 6,184 188
Amount due from related company (trade) - 1,223
Other payables 7,899 1,926
Accrued operating expenses
- StafT costs 59,600 5,983
- Provision for unutilised leave - 51.678
- Others 47958 29 158
121,641 20,156
Revenue
2023 2022
8 s
Revenue from contracts with customers:
Revenue recognised over time:
Advisory fee 421,200 251,667
Management fee 634,016 289,158
Performance fee 99.109 201349
1.154,325 742,174

The following table provide information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of
performance obligations in contracts with customers and the related revenue recognition policies:

Advisory fee

Nature of service Advisory fee is carmned by the Company by providing
management consultant and investment advisory services.

‘When revenue is recognised | Revenue is recognised over time as the service is rendered.

Significant payment terms Payment is due within 60 days after services are rendered.

Management fee and performance fee

Nature of service Management fee and performance fee are camed by the
Company for managing investments for funds in the ordinary
course of business.

When revenue is recognised | Revenue is recognised over the investment period.

Significant payment terms Management fec and performance fee arc payable in quarterly
in arrears and due within 60 days.
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Contract balances

The following table provides information about contract assets and contract liabilities for
contracts with customers.

2023 2022
b3 5
Contract assets 178,626 142,609
Contract liabilities 413.761 483,864

The contract assets primarily relate to the Company’s rights to consideration for work completed
but not billed at the reporting date on management fee and performance fee. The contract assets
are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become unconditional. This usually occurs
when the Company invoices the customer.

Contract liabilitics relate to advance billings issued in excess of the Company’s right to the
consideration.

The contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company fulfils its performance
obligation under the contract with the customer. The significant changes in the contract assets and
contract liabilitics during the vear arc as follows:

Contract assets Contract liabilities
2023 2022 2023 2022
s b kY s

Revenue recognised that was

included in the contract

liability balance at the

beginning of the vear -
Increases due to cash received.

excluding amounts

recognised as revenue during

the vear - - - -
Changes in measurement of

progress 178.626 142,609 - -

70,103 84.123

Right-of-use asset
Leases as a lessee

The Company has lease contract for office premise in its operations. Leases of office premise
generally have lease term of 3 years,

During 2022, the leased properties has been sub-let by the Company to its related parties. The
lease and sub-lease expire in 2025,
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Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below.

Cost

At 1 June 2021

Addition

Derecognition of ROU asset*
At 31 May 2022

Addition

Derecognition of ROU asset*
At 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 June 2021
Depreciation charge

At 31 May 2022
Depreciation charge

At 31 March 2023

Net carrying amount
At 1 June 2021

At 31 May 2022
At 31 March 2023

Office premise
5

413,780
(200.959)
214.821

2,254

(23.060)
194,015

34,650
34.650

62,529

97,179

180,171
96,836

*  Derecognition of the right-of-use assets is as a result of entering into a finance sub-lease with related

companies,

Amount recognised in statement of comprehensive income

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets presented in

‘finance cost, net’

Expenses relating to short-term leases

Amount recognised in statement of cash flow

Total cash outflow for leases

Leases as a lessor

Finance lease

2023 2022
b s
8.716 5,860
(5.204) (3.101)
- 27.398
2023 2022
b s
132,573 83 485

The Company has sub-lcased a building that has been presented as part of a right-of-use asset to

its related companies.
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During 2023, the Company recognised interest income on lease receivables of $3,204 (2022:
$3.101).

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease receivables, showing the undiscounted
lease payvments to be received afier the reporting date.

2023 2022
5 s

Less than one year 91,011 79,511
One to two vears 43.591 79,511
Two to three yvears e 24.147
Undiscounted finance lease receivables 134,602 183,169
Unearned finance income (3.649) (7.937)
Finance Iease receivables 130,953 175,232
Non-current 43,316 101,170
Current 87.637 74,062

130,953 175,232

Operating lease

Rental income from property sublease recognised by the Company during 2023 was $nil (2022
$15,000).

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of the lease liabilitics and the movement during the financial year are as
below:

2023 2022
8 s

Balance at 1 June 313,221 -
Non-cash changes
Additions 2.154 390,846
Interest cxpense on leasc liability 8716 5.860
Total non-cash changes 10,870 396.706
Changes from financing cash flows
Interest paid (8.716) (5.860)
Payment of lease liabilities (123.857) (77.625)
Total changes from financing cash flows (132,573) (83.485)
Balance at 31 March 2023 and 31 May 2022 191,518 313.221
Non-current 48,946 177.049
Current 142,572 136,172

191,518 313,221

FS21
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2023 2022
Nominal
interest  Year of Face Carrying Face Carrying
rate maturity value amount value amount
8 S 8 s
Lease liabilitics 4% 2025 412,674 191,518 410,463 313,221
Other operating income
2023 2022
5 S
Exchange gain - 7.506
Grant income = 1.380
Other service income 20,000 -
Rental income - 15,000
20,000 23,886

The jobs support scheme (*JSS™) was introduced in the Unity Budget in February 2020, It provides
wage support for employers to retain their local employees (Singapore Citizens and Permanent
Residents) during the period of ecconomic uncertainty due to the Coronavirus (‘COVID-19"). The
corresponding expenses are recognised in stafT costs.

Other service income relates to professional service provided to its related company for
management advisory and administrative support for company establishment.

Finance (costs)/income, net

Interest income under the effective interest method on:

- Sublcase
- Interest income
Finance income

Interest expense on lease liabilitics

Interest expense on provision for reinstatement cost

Finance costs

Net finance costs recognised in profit or loss

2023 2022
$ S
5.204 3.101
7.100 51
12.304 3,152
(8.716) (5.860)
(863) (419)
(9.579) (6.279)
2,725 {3.127)
FS22
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Profit before tax

The following items have been included in arriving at profit before tax:

2023 2022
8§ s
Director’s remuneration:
- Director’s salarv and allowances 557.643 249292
- Director’s CPF contributions 13.600 13.940
Staff:
- Salary and allowances 398,113 241,000
Depreciation of ROU assct 62,529 34,650
Professional fees:
- Consulting fees 13,301 32,155
- Audit fees 41,092 25,512
- Legal lees 13,950 -
Exchange loss /(gain) 20,753 (7.506)
Reversal of unutilised leave (51.678) (4.674)
Tax expense
2023 2022
b bl

Tax recognised in profit or loss
Current tax expense
Current year - 5.157
Under provision in respect of prior years = 2,166

- 7.323
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before tax 34 444 101,993
Tax calculated using the Singapore tax rate of 17%

(2022: 17%) 5.855 17.339
Income not subject to tax (883) (10,595)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (7.970) 1,839
Current year tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is

recognised 2,970 -
Recognition of tax cffect of previously unrecognised tax

losscs - (3.426)
Under provision in respects ol prior years - 2.166

- 7.323
FS23
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Year ended 31 March 2023

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

2023 2022
s 8
Tax losses 485.577 468,106

The tax losses are subject to agreement by the tax authorities and compliance with tax regulations
in the Republic of Singapore. The tax losses do not expire under the current tax regulations.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not probable
that future taxable profit will be available for which the Company can utilise the benefits there
from.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered (o be related to the Company
if the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly. to control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the
Company and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals or other entities.

Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel consists of directors of the Company, some of whom are also
members of the holding company. Key management personnel compensation comprised:

2023 2022
] S
Short-term employee benefits 557,643 249292
Contributions to defined contribution plan 13.600 13.940
571,243 263,232

Other related party transactions

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements. there were the following significant
transactions carried oul by the Company with its related parties during the financial vear on terms
agreed between the parties:

2023 2022
S s
Immediate holding company:
Rental income - 15.000
Short-term lease expense 27.398

FS24
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2023 2022
] S

Related company:

Advisory fee revenue - 51,800
Other service income 20,000 -
Receipt of sublease payment 67.479 25,727
Interest income received/receivable 5.204 3.101
Professional fee (24,900) (27.477)

Financial risk management

Overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
credit risk

foreign currency risk

interest rate risk
liquidity risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing nisk, and the
Company’s management of capital,

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company s risk management policies. Management reports regularly to the Board
of Directors on its activitics.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced
by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence
to limits. Risk management policies and svstems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive conirol
environment in which all emplovees understand their roles and obligations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a counterparty to a financial instrument
fails 10 meet its contractual obligations. and arises principally from the Company s trade and other
receivables, contract assets and finance lease receivables.

The carrving amounts of trade and other receivables, contract assets, finance lease receivables

and cash and cash cquivalents represent the Company’s exposure to credit risk. Policics are in
place to ensure on-going credit evaluation and active account monitoring,

F§825
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Asg at 31 March 2023, trade and other receivables and contract assets comprise two debtors which
represented 100% of trade and other receivables and contract assets. The Company believes that
the concentration of its credit risk in trade and other receivables and contract assets is mitigated
substantially by its credit evaluation process, credit policies and eredit control and collection
procedures,

The trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 days term. No interest is
charged on the trade receivables. Loss allowance for trade receivables has always been measured
at an amount cqual to lifetime expected credit losses ("ECL™). The ECL on trade receivables are
estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an
analysis of the debtor's current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors. General economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during
the current reporting period.

The expected impact on the loss allowance as at 31 March 2023 and 31 May 2022 are negligible.

The Company held finance lease receivables of $130,953 (2022: $175,232), The Company uses
an approach that is based on an assessment of qualitative and quantitative factors that are
indicative of the risk of default. There is no significant increase in credit risk for these exposures.
Therefore impairment on the balance has been measured on the 12-month expected credit loss
basis; and the amount of the allowance is insignificant.

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of $1.000,000 at 31 March 2023 (2022: $906,435).
The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties which
are rated AA-. based on S&P ratings.
Impairment on cash and cash ¢quivalents has been measured on the 12-month expected loss basis
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Company considers that its cash and cash
equivalents have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.
The Company uses a similar approach for assessment of ECLs for cash and cash equivalents to
those used for debt investments. The amount of the allowance on cash and cash equivalents is
negligible.
Financial assets are neither past due nor impaired as at 31 March 2023 and 31 May 2022,

(ii) Foreign currency risk
The Company s foreign currency risk results mainly from trade and other receivables, cash and

cash equivalents and other pavables denominated in foreign currencies predominantly in United
States dollar (‘USD"),
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The summary of quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk is as follows:

USD JPY
b s

2023
Trade and other receivables = -
Contract assels 178.626 -
Cash and cash equivalent 657,950 9

836,576 9
2022
Trade and other receivables 208.957 -
Contract assets 142,609 -
Cash and cash equivalent 363,404 10

714,970 10

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk

As at 31 March 2023, if the Singapore dollar strengthens/weakens by 5% (2022: 5%) against
foreign currencics, the Company's net profit after tax will be lower/higher by $41.829 (2022:
$35,749). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant and does not take into account the translation related risk and associated tax effects.

(iii) Interest rate risk
The Company has short-term fixed deposits with maturity periods of less than 12 months and
interest rate at 4.80% for United States dollar and 1.75% for Singapore dollar (2022: 0.00%) per
annum, and secks to minimise its interest rate exposure by obtaining the most favourable interest
ratc available.

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk

Change in interest rate is not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the
Company.

(iv) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that receivables may not be able to settle obligations
within the normal terms of trade. The Company's risk management objective is to maintain a

balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through available funding from banks
and/or related entities to assure necessary liquidity,

FS827
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Exposure o liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities. The amounts are
gross and undiscounted. and include contractual interest payments:

After 1 year
Carrying Contractual  Within  but within 5

amount cash flows 1 year years
s § ] A
At 31 March 2023
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 191,518 210.661 160,507 49,154
Trade and other payables” 121,641 121.641 121,641

313.159 332,302 282,148 49.154

At 31 May 2022

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Lease liabilities 313.221 326,979 146,097 180,882

Trade and other payables™ 38.478 38.478 38478 -
351.699 365457 184,575 180.882

~ o Exeluding provision for wmtilised leave

Accounting classifications and fair values

Financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year
(including trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables)
are classified at amortised cost. These financial assets and liabilities are assumed to approximate
their fair values because of the short period to maturity.

Non-current deposit

The carrying amount of non-current deposit are assumed to approximate fair value as the effect
of discounting is immaterial.

Change of financial year-end

During the financial period. the Company changed its financial year end from 31 May to 31 March
and accordingly. the financial statements for the current period cover a period of 10 months from

1 June 2022 to 31 March 2023 and therefore are not comparable against the prior financial vear's
results.
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Ogier Global Trustee Cayman Limited

2023 10,000 141
0GCL
0GCL
CIMA CIMA
Mita Capital Pte.Ltd.)
2023 1,000,000 106
2019
CMS101272
MAS
ASCENT Fund Services (Singapore Pte. Ltd.
2023 2,550,000 359
2019
vCC
FATCA CRS
FX
2023

1947 70
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of MS Star Funds (the ““Fund””), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023 and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders
and the statement of cash flows for the period from 1 November 2021 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023, and the related notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (all expressed in
UsD).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Fund as at 31 March 2023, and its financial
performance, iIts changes in net assets attributable to unitholders and its cash flows
for period from 1 November 2021 (date of commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for

Accountants® [International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note 5 to these financial statements which indicates that the
financial year-end of the underlying collective investment schemes held by the Fund
are not co-terminous with that of the Fund and consequently, the independently
audited financial statements are not available as at the reporting date of the Fund.
As a result, the valuation of these collective investment schemes amounting to
USD51,983,755, cannot be corroborated against independently audited net asset values
as at 31 March 2023 and have been based on unaudited net asset values as provided by
the administrator of those underlying funds as the audited financial statements of
the underlying funds. Because of the inherent uncertainty in the above valuations,
reported figures might differ from the values that would have been obtained had
independently audited net asset values of the concerned investments as of 31 March
2023 been available.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the above matter.
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the trustees and other information but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund®"s financial
reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control .

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s
internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor™s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

31 August 2023
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Mita Capital Pte. Ltd.

Report on the audit of the financia statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of (‘the Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as
at , the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financia statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out
on pages FS1 to FS28.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1967 (‘the Act') and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore ('FRSS) so asto give atrue and fair
view of the financial position of the Company asat and of the financial performance, changesin equity and cash
flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ('SSAS). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the 'Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regul atory
Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (ACRA Codg)
together with the ethical requirementsthat are relevant to our audit of the financial statementsin Singapore, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information contained in the annual report. Other information is defined as
al information in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors' opinion thereon.

We have obtained all other information prior to the date of this auditors report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materialy misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements
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Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statementsthat give atrue and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation
of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue asa
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors' responsibilities include overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SSAswill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company'sinternal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosuresin the
financia statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
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the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controls that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly

kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

KPMGLLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
31 August 2023

)
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